Meeting: Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Police and Crime Panel

Date/Time: Monday, 22 May 2017 at 1.00 pm

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall

Contact: Euan Walters (Tel: 0116 305 6226)

Email: euan.walters@leics.gov.uk

Membership

Clir. John Boyce

ClIr. Lee Breckon, JP

Mrs. Helen Carter

ClIr. Ratilal Govind

Cllr. Malise Graham

Col. Robert Martin OBE, DL
Cllr. Ozzy O'Shea

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC
Cllr. Abdul Osman

CllIr. Rosita Page

CllIr. Trevor Pendleton
CllIr. David Slater

Cllr. Manjula Sood, MBE
Cllr. Alan Walters

Please note: this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s web site at www.leicestershire.gov.uk

— Notices will be on display at the meeting explaining the arrangements.

AGENDA
ltem Report by
1. Election of Chairman.
2.  Election of Deputy Chairman.
3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2017 (Pages 3 - 8)

4.  Public Question Time.

5. To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

Democratic Services ° Chief Executive’s Department ° Leicestershire County Council - County Hall
Glenfield - Leicestershire ° LE3 8RA ° Tel: 0116 232 3232 - Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk

g www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy www.leicestershire.gov.uk



mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/public-involvement/watch-council-meetings-online

10.

11.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

Quarter 4 Performance Report
Victim First Update

Police and Crime Act 2017
Date of next meeting.

The next meeting of the Panel is scheduled to take place on 26 July 2017
at 1.00pm

Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

(Pages 9 - 30)
(Pages 31 - 32)

(Pages 33 - 36)



56.

S7.

58.

59.

3 Agenda Iltem 3

Minutes of a meeting of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Police and Crime Panel
held at County Hall, Glenfield on Wednesday, 29 March 2017.

PRESENT

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC (in the Chair)

Clr. John Boyce Cllr. Abdul Osman

CliIr. Lee Breckon, JP CllIr. Rosita Page

ClIr. Ratilal Govind Clir. Trevor Pendleton
ClIr. Malise Graham Clir. Manjula Sood, MBE
Cllr. Ozzy O'Shea Clir. Alan Walters

Apologies

Mrs. Helen Carter, Col. Robert Martin OBE, DL and Clir. Lynn Senior

In attendance

Lord Willy Bach, Police and Crime Commissioner
ClIr. Kirk Master, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner
Simon Cole, Chief Constable

Minutes of the previous meeting.

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2017 were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.

Further to minute no. 46 the PCC confirmed that Paul Stock had now left the OPCC and
the vacancy for the role of Chief Executive would be advertised.

Public Question Time.

There were no questions submitted.

To advise of any other items which the Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

There were no urgent items for consideration.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda.

The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.

It was noted that ClIr. M. Sood had a standing personal interest in respect of all
substantive agenda items as a member of the Police’s Independent Advisory Panel, as
the Chairman of the Leicester Council of Faiths and a member of the Bishop’s Faith
Forum.

No other declarations were made.



60.

4

HMIC report - PEEL Police Effectiveness 2016.

The Police and Crime Panel considered a report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
(PCC) which provided an update on the recent HMIC Inspection of Leicestershire Police.
A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda ltem 5’, is filed with these minutes.

The Chairman welcomed Chief Constable Simon Cole to the meeting for this and other
items.

Arising from discussions the following points were noted:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

An Action Plan had been put in place to address the issues raised by HMIC in their
report. The actions of the Force in response to the HMIC report would be held to
account by the PCC at the Strategic Assurance Board. The PCC was of the view
that some of the criticism of Leicestershire Police in the HMIC report was unjustified
and that HMIC had not given sufficient credit for the good work that Leicestershire
Police carried out particularly with Neighbourhood Policing. Leicestershire Police
were in discussions with HMIC to gain further understanding of some of the areas
for improvement identified in their report and in particular regarding the service to
victims.

HMIC would be carrying out a further inspection of Police effectiveness in 2017
which may not give enough time for the results of the Action Plan to become
evident. It was the view of the Chief Constable that HMIC inspections should take
place in alternate years to give time for areas for improvement to be addressed and
he had written to the Chief HMI expressing this view.

Whilst HMIC were of the view that effective risk assessments were carried out whilst
the Police were at the scene of an incident, they had concerns that at other times
risk was not assessed appropriately, for example when reports of domestic abuse
were graded as not requiring an immediate response. The Panel were reassured that
the risk assessment process had now changed so that all assessments had to be
signed off by an officer at Inspector level.

Clarification was given that the figures for England and Wales given on page 5 of
the HMIC report (page 21 of the agenda pack) were an average per 1,000
population.

With regard to issues identified by HMIC around the control room response and
advice given to callers, the Panel were informed that this was partly due to the
pressure of the workload in the control room and partly due to training issues. New
staff were paired together with more experienced staff on a workstation which,
although it meant they could share experience with the new staff member, also
meant they were not available to answer separate calls.

With regard to the statement of the PCC in a media release of 3 March in which the
PCC stated that he intended to lobby for a fairer funding deal for Leicestershire
Police, discussion took place on the best way for the Panel to support and scrutinise
the PCC on this topic. The Panel felt it would be of benefit to receive a report at a
future meeting on progress towards resolving the issues identified in the HMIC
report and explaining how any additional funding would be spent. In the meantime it
was offered to circulate to Panel Members a report that had been written for a
meeting with the Policing Minister on the topic of fairer funding. It was proposed that



61.

a letter should then be sent to the PCC from the Panel setting out that the Panel
supported, in principle, his campaign for fairer funding for Leicestershire Police.

RESOLVED:

(@)
(b)

(€)

That the contents of the report be noted;

That the PCC be requested to submit a report to the meeting of the Police and
Crime Panel on 26 July 2017 on the progress of Leicestershire Police towards
addressing the areas for improvement identified by HMIC.

That a letter from the Police and Crime Panel be sent to the PCC in support of his
campaign for fairer funding for Leicestershire Police.

Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner for Leicestershire Update.

The Police and Crime Panel considered a report of the Police and Crime Commissioner
which provided an update on the work of the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner
(DPCC) during his first six months in office. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda ltem €,
is filed with these minutes.

Arising from discussions the following points were noted:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Since taking up his role the DPCC had visited every district of Leicestershire and
Rutland and observed the different requirements of policing rural areas as opposed
to the city. He had also met with the National Farmers Union.

In response to a question regarding how the DPCC would deal with a situation
where Leicester City Council had concerns about the performance of Leicestershire
Police, bearing in mind the dual role of Kirk Master as a City Councillor, the Deputy
PCC stated that he had a sufficiently good relationship with the City Mayor that they
would be able to deal with the matter. The DPCC stated that with meetings where a
potential conflict of interest was identified decisions would be made as to whether
Kirk Master was the appropriate person to attend the meetings and if necessary
decide whether a substitute should go in his place. The DPCC also reminded the
Panel that he had relinquished his role as Community Safety Partnership Chair.

With regard to the weekly timetable of Kirk Master as detailed at paragraph 9 of the
report the DPCC stated that he tried to commit to the timetable as much as possible
and it had worked well so far. Kirk Master praised staff at the OPCC and Leicester
City Council for enabling him to carry out both roles successfully.

The PCC stated that he was extremely content with the contribution Kirk Master had
made so far as DPCC and felt that the expertise of the DPCC complemented that of
the PCC.

RESOLVED:

(@)
(b)

That the contents of the report be noted;

That the PCC be requested to bring a report to the Panel on a bi-annual basis on
the DPCC, his portfolio of work and his contribution to the implementation of the
Police and Crime Plan.



OPCC Youth Commission Update.

The Police and Crime Panel considered a report from the PCC which provided an update
on progress of the Youth Commission. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda ltem 7, is
filed with these minutes.

The Chairman welcomed PC Clive Ellis to the meeting for this item.
Arising from discussions the following points were made:

()  The Youth Commission had required re-energising due to less emphasis being
placed on it in the previous year. A problem had also been identified with retention
of Youth Commissioners as people of that age tended to have very fluid life
circumstances causing some of them to be unable to commit to the Youth
Commission for long periods of time. Consequently there had been a new
recruitment campaign which had resulted in 18 new Youth Commissioners being
appointed in addition to the existing Members of the Youth Commission and there
would be a further recruitment campaign in the near future. The makeup of the
Youth Commission would be kept under constant review to ensure that there were
sufficient numbers and they were of the right diversity.

(i)  The Panel supported the Youth Commission and work to involve the youth of
Leicestershire in policing matters and highlighted the value of using the Youth
Commission in crime prevention work. The PCC confirmed that crime prevention
would be an area of work for the Youth Commission.

(i) In response to a submission that £3700, as quoted in the report, was a small
amount of money to fund a large project such as the Youth Commission, the PCC
stated that he believed this demonstrated that the Youth Commission was cost
effective. Clarification was given that the travelling expenses of the Youth
Commission were met by the Volunteers budget of Leicestershire Police not the
OPCC budget.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report be noted.

Victim First Update.

The Police and Crime Panel considered a report from the PCC which provided an update
on progress of the Victim First Service. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 8, is
filed with these minutes.

Arising from discussions the following points were noted:

() A meeting was to take place on 30 March 2017 where the future of the Victim First
Service would be decided. Therefore it was suggested that a further report on
Victim First should be considered by the Police and Crime Panel at its next meeting.
As the current contract with Catch 22 expired on 30 September 2017 staff at Catch
22 would need to be made aware by 30 June 2017 whether the contract would be
extended.



(i) It was confirmed that HMIC had no powers to inspect the activities of Police and
Crime Commissioners therefore the work of Victim First did not come under the
remit of the HMIC Inspection — Peel Effectiveness. Consequently the finding that
victim support was an area that Leicestershire Police needed to improve on had no
relevance to the Victim First Service.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the contents of the report be noted.

(b) That the PCC be requested to submit a further report on Victim First to the meeting
of the Police and Crime Panel on 22 May 2017.

64. Date of next meeting.

RESOLVED:
It was noted that the next meeting of the Commission would be held on 22 May 2017 at
1:00pm.

1.00 -2.50 pm CHAIRMAN

29 March 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



9 Agenda Item 7

POLICE AND CRIME
COMMISSIONER FOR
LEICESTERSHIRE

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Report Of CHIEF CONSTABLE

Subject 2016 - 17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE MONITORING
Date MONDAY 22 MAY 2017 — 1:00 p.m.

Author CHRIS NEWBOLD, THREAT ASSESSMENT UNIT

Purpose of Report

1.  The purpose of this report is to inform the Police and Crime Panel of Leicestershire Police
performance against the Force priorities as documented in the Police and Crime Plan (PCP).

Scope of Report

2. This report details performance to Quarter 4 of 2016-17, utilising data up to the end of year
31° March 2017.

Background

3. At the SAB meeting on the 8" May 2014, it was agreed that performance reporting to the
Strategic Assurance Board is provided on a quarterly basis. This report looks at recorded
crime levels in the context of long term trends. This puts the levels of crime being recorded
at present into context and also indicates where levels are significantly high, or low, using
statistical process control (SPC) methodology.



10

Call Handling

Emergency Calls

Emergency Calls Calls Received

16000

14000

12000 | ﬂ estase
"_.-'_.-'.+ ) _,-__.’ u f\
10000

; 7 S umm, Yo
0000 }_r.*_,(_r;&!? oy \_H,-,— !{I;H_r-r_t_l-;r__v- Hbq 5SS Sk < _‘rf o &.“[ .

s Ire»
%) i

Lewel

8000

Ly

2000
LU

2

=}

[ o [ -— -— -— -— od o od o o o o o =T =T =t =T w L 's ] o w w0 w w0 I

L T # ©C = T ®# C = T ®# £C = T ®# £ = T ®# C = T ®# C©C = T 9w C

2 3 8 58 & S &8 § & 3 &8 58 & 383 &6 g 3 & g & S 8 g &3S &8 =5
Maonth

Emergency call volumes exhibit a seasonal increase in July and although there is not an
exact annual pattern monthly call volumes have subsequently reduced as expected to the
mean expected levels in February 2017. March did record increased call volumes and it is

expected that there will be a rising trend over the coming months to the seasonal peak in the
summer months.

The pattern of monthly calls does mean that January was identified as statistically
exceptional despite the reducing trend over the preceding months. This is due to the number
of successive months with levels above the expected mean level. The further reduction in
February therefore breaks the successive ‘above mean’ volumes.

It is evident that the volumes of emergency calls received has increased over the last two
years and this position will continue to be closely monitored as this forms the basis of the

Force Emergency Response demand in addition to the demand in the Call Management
Department.

Emergency Calls — Abandonment Rates

Emergency Calls % Abandonment Rate

.....

.....

o oy
135: od *-f.-__r;.-'_»_-_?r! Muhf . \-r;r'-t-"f o4

(g O BggglegePene @

Lewel
[ RS R
[
=288
F RS
-~
-
¥
-
-

T

nno (=] [==] [==] - - = = o™ ™ ™ ™ m [yt o0 [y = -+ =+ -+ w0 e [l L o w0 w w L
I%E 2 8 T reosezofeNoM N B m m @ F o3 oxo oy L wow.ow.®0.0 w8 I
Z 5 B8 £ £ 5 B C s 5 & C o 5 i C L& 5 3 C oL 5 oy o C o 5 45 C
F =5 5 & 3 c 5 F =2 5 F 3 s 5 F 3 55T FFoo-BF 3 o5
3.00%

Month




11

7. Unanswered calls that have exceeded the 10 second target answering time frame are
described as abandoned. The abandonment rate for emergency calls continues to be very
low with limited minor fluctuations. There are obvious fluctuations on a daily basis dependant
on the volumes and temporal spread across the day of calls received.

8.

Handling 999 emergency calls remains an absolute priority for the Force and call handler
resources are actively managed to ensure the level of abandonment is kept to a minimum,

and also that the calls are answered promptly on receipt with 85% of calls received during
the 12 months period answered within 10 seconds.

Non-Emergency Calls

Non-Emergency Calls Calls Received

nnnnn

Level

uuuuu

Apr10

Jur1o

Jul12
Jul 14
Oct14
Jan1s
Apr 15
Jul1s
0ct15
Jan16
Apr 16
Jul1e

Apr 14

Qct12
Jan13
Apri3
J

0ct13
Jan 14

Apri2

Oct10
Jan 11
Apr 11
Jul
Ot 11
Jan12

Oct 16
Jan17

9.  The monthly volumes of non-emergency calls appear to show a generally reducing trend
over the period since July 2014, with some natural fluctuation in monthly volumes and an
apparent seasonal rise in calls in July annually.

10. There have been periods of close fluctuation around the mean expected level from April
2016 and a reducing trend to the lower bounds of the expected range in December 2016.

11.

The period since December has seen a rising trend, however this has only seen call volumes
exceed the mean expected level in March 2017 and there are no concerns at this point
regarding the levels of calls received or the trend as there are no data points identified as

statistically exceptional. On a monthly basis the range of monthly fluctuation is all within the
normal expected performance.

Non-Emergency Calls — Abandonment Rates

Non-Emergency Calls % Abandonment Rate

20.00%

5.00% f
£ Ay . P T
_____ A

| S Y e HIO0OCK J-’_l'_;'__-'_r;;(_ﬂ'*:f'#_'}f :

Lewel
=
=
=
=

¢ » A

2.00% =
o o o — — — - o ™ o ™ (3] o (3] (3] = -t = -t W el Ul el w w w w -
- = = = = =t e e et e E e e e e e s e e e e = = = = =
£ 5 B £ 5 I B E 5 I B E 5§ 3 B E 5 3 B E 5 3 B £ 5 3 B C

5 00% F =2 & B F 5 g 8B ¥ 52 8 5 % 5 o 8 F 5 5 5 8 52 5 5 F 3 o =

Maonth




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

12

The abandonment rate for non-emergency calls (over 30 seconds) is much more volatile
than for emergency calls. The number of non-emergency calls received is much greater than
emergency calls, and although the monthly totals had been below the mean expected levels
there are significant variances on a daily basis which can place excessive demand on the
call handlers.

There has been a significant shift in abandonment rates during 2017: however, there are
known contributory factors to this to include staffing levels in the Call Management
Department which have been affected by seasonal increases in sickness levels, staff taking
career progression opportunities elsewhere in the organisation and a number of technical
failures of the IT infrastructure which supports the 101 number (IT issues are now resolved).

ACC Nixon is leading a gold group to support performance improvements and accelerate the
recruitment of call handlers in the short term and in the medium term drive enhancement
through Blueprint 2020 and Project Darwin. This work also prioritises a number of HMIC
recommendations, areas for improvement and the Police and Crime Plan. A review of the
seating plan is also taking place to ensure that there is the best possible match of
appropriate resources to handle anticipated levels of demand.

Additionally there are programmes of work to better manage existing demand by adding call
back options and shifting demand from non-emergency calls to e - contact channels. On-line
reporting of crime has also been introduced and is in the very early days of validating the
process and monitoring the public response to this. This should lead to further reduction in
non-emergency call volumes over time.

Whilst previous temporal and seasonal patterns of calls can be analysed and inferences may
be made, it is not possible to predict the future patterns and volumes of calls with complete
accuracy and there will always be periods where volumes exceed capacity which will lead to
abandoned calls (for example a crash on the M1).

In the meantime giving priority to emergency call handling will continue to protect the most
vulnerable callers although this does mean that there will be times when non-emergency
performance may be affected. This is an active management decision to give the highest
priority response to the highest priority calls where the greatest threat and risk exists, whilst
the other work-streams detailed above progress to implementation.



Incident Grading Profile -

18.

19.

20.

21.

13

1 - Emergency 2 - Priority

14% 34%

12% 1 — : A 32% 1 T —

100 =T Lo ’_""_*-.r,.ﬁ,/_(’:'i'_/i ST T 30% ~ N ..-c\

8% 28% == ----ememeemeemmmmmeceooo X O

6% 26%

A% 24%

2% 22%

% ————T—T—TT T T T T T T T T T T T 20% +—F——F—F——F———— T T
wn W w o w O o WO O w O o W W P~ M~ w W w o w O o o O L O Ww © O ~ M~
B 2 QO C O F 5 >>C 5 Do =2 O Cc o= B o2 O C o g k£ ™»C 5 O ofhg =20 Ccog
C28sSP=22233280288e2 = SE88P 228833258838 5s8%8¢%

3 - Appointment 4 - Telephone

29%
27%
25%
23%

19%
17%
15%

219 T~ e — T T T AT T

44%
42%
40%
38% -
36%
34%
32%
30% -

8338385853533 588888°8 833838585333 588888°¢8
Latest Figures Total Incidents %
1 - Emergency 2,422 12.3%
2 - Prionty 5,487 27.8%
3 - Appointment 4,282 21.7%
4 - Telephone 7,547 38 2%
Total 19,738 |

Grading of incidents since the introduction of the Edison Operating Model in February 2015
have generally exceeded the anticipated levels of Grade 1 Emergency and Grade 2 Priority
Incidents. The anticipated proportions of incidents by are shown by the horizontal dotted

lines in the above charts for each grade of incident.

Consequently, an additional 8 Emergency Incidents and 28 additional Priority Incidents per

day adds to demands on response teams.

The increase in scheduled incidents, where the appointment is made to suit the caller, has
moved the proportions of these incidents to the levels originally anticipated.

The proportion of telephone response incidents appear to have generally increased over the
last year however, this has reached a plateau just below the model rate.




14

Emergency Incident Response Times

22.

23.

24,

25.

18 -
16 -
14
12
10 -
E} -
i
E 7
4 -
2 A
[] I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
= = = = = wp up WO oy WD o 0 W0 oo WD e
e == = - T R T el o R o e = = B B o
oS 5 2 0 g oS 32 @ g oS 3 92 o g
T2 L2 0oL <20 o270 0
Latest Figures Total Amrrivals  Ave Time
Anti-Social Behaviour 31 00:14:15
Crme 824 00:14:48
Public Safety 1,120 00:15:15
Road Related 197 00:15:26
Total 2,296 00:15:03

It should be noted that there is no target time for arrival with an expectation that officers will
arrive as quickly and as safely as possible, the previous target time of 15 minutes is however
used as a reference point for assessment of trend performance.

There are natural variances by day of the week and time of day however, the broad overall
level of arrival times is considered to be positive.

As described above, further detailed work has been commissioned by DCC Bannister as part
of the Force Performance Development Group meeting (PDG) to further analyse the
underlying data in order to understand any geographic or temporal variances.

ACC Nixon is leading the development of this work, which will then inform deployment
decisions in respect of response resources across the Force area and the levels required to
effectively and efficiently handle anticipated levels of demand.



15

Priority Incident Response Times

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

a0 -
70 -
B0 -
50 -
40 £
30 -
20 -
10 4
[] I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
= = = = = Wy Wy W OWDoun Woon o W W0 oo 0 e
el = = T - B = T el o R B = T el = T - [
oS5 5 2 w o S5 5 2 o o 5 5 2 o
A5 T 0oL <3 0npun4L<S5g20n0
Latest Figures Total Arrivals ~ Ave Time
Anti-Social Behaviour 363 00:66:15
Crime 17 01:20:47
Public Safety 1,776 01:29:56
Road Related 433 00:36:13
Total 3,643 01:14:41

Non-emergency response times continue to exhibit greater pressures with times generally
greater than 60 minutes, and an upwards trend clearly evident.

As highlighted above, priority is given to Emergency calls and although the above chart
shows a two year succession of significant exception points this trend is under constant
scrutiny. Regular review will avoid the trend becoming out of control whilst mitigating
measures are implemented.

The reference point back to the previous 60 minutes target is purely for continuity and trend
interpretation.

The assumptions made at the time of Edison were that response officers would have ready
access to mobile data which would maximise their out of station available time with full
access to all Force IT systems in the community, although, such access has until now not
been fully optimised and has hampered our ability to achieve the anticipated performance
levels.

However, commencing in May 2017 a full mobile IT solution is being actively rolled out to all
response officers followed swiftly by neighbourhood officers. Officers will be allocated
personal issue laptops with complete desktop functionality which will minimise the need to
return to the station and allow informed analysis of the operating model moving forward, thus
supporting an evidenced based approach to future deployment decisions.



16

Recorded Crime Summary

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

- L

E & £ & & £ 5 &2 £ § ®# ®E 8 T & § E 8 5 §
S § ® € 5 T ® 5 £ § % £ g8 & © & 5 E 3%
= £ = g &4 £ T 2 s & 4 & S 2 & 5 s ¢

= = ; 0 = -] s = = ' v = & = = E 2

& = = = E = = 2 e £ £ & = = ™

g = = 2 = = E = = = 5 =

= = . ' = = 2 >

=] = o — E = - v F-1]

= = E = S =] = = =2 = 0

= 5 = = ¢ &£ 2 = = 5 E

= = = € B = = S

= = — = @ =

E = —

ar a

= =

= =

= =

g o

E ©

- £

=3
=

The above chart summarises the current monthly levels of recorded crime in relation to the
mean expected levels.

There is a National increase in crime with 40 of the 43 Forces reporting increased levels of
overall crime during the period to February 2017.

The categories of crime locally currently reporting significantly high levels of monthly crime
are; All Crime, Domestic Violence Without Injury, Domestic Violence With Injury, Hate Crime,
Violence With Injury, Violence Without Injury, Theft of Motor Vehicle, Robbery-Business,
Shoplifting, Sexual Offences and Crimes Against Society are also identified as statistically
significantly high.

The higher levels of Domestic Violence Without Injury are regarded as positive, representing
an increased confidence in reporting and at an earlier stage before matters have escalated to
a more serious assault and enabling support to potentially vulnerable victims. They also
impact on the overall levels of Violence without Injury. There is a general increase nationally
and the figures have in part been driven by the crime of Malicious Communications, which
was added to this category in April 2016; this equates to almost 2% of overall crime during
the year.

Domestic Violence with Injury has remained at a statistically significantly high level for the
last seven months. However, there is a reducing trend evident during 2017. Actual Bodily
Harm (ABH) offences comprise the bulk of this category and the domestic offences are
approximately 35% of the overall Violence with Injury offences.

Hate Crime levels have again increased following a previously reducing trend which is
generally viewed as a positive. There are additional factors following the EU leave vote which
did result in some additional reports, although locally the impact was not as dramatic as the
media reports from other areas around the country suggests was the case for some Forces.
Weekly intelligence reports to the National Community Tension Team do not reveal any
significant issues for Leicestershire at this point.




37.

38.

39.

40.

17

Crime has generally been regarded as being broadly controlled with stability in the levels of
recorded crimes. A rise in a number of the larger volume categories has driven up overall
crime with several consecutive months of significantly high crime recorded. This appeared to
have fallen back slightly in December, however further increases are evident during the early
months of 2017.

Overall crime rates for the 12 months which ended February 2017 are estimated at 63.6 per
1,000 population (ONS estimate population 1,055,982 in 2015). This is an increase of
approximately 5.9 crimes per 1,000 since the February 2016 data.

Crimes Against Society include Drugs Offences, Possession of Weapons and Public Fear
and Affray. These offences do not have a defined victim and are generally seen as a
positive sign of pro-active policing. The current higher levels are therefore not regarded as
an area for concern although there will continue to be consideration of this at PDG if the
current trend continues.

Notwithstanding, the Force has reviewed it's performance governance structures and is
implementing an Operational Performance Effectiveness Group, led by ACC Nixon which will
ensure detailed scrutiny for all crime types and satisfaction performance with assigned
accountability to strategic leads. This group will work to the Performance Development
Group (PDG) led by DCC Bannister, which will ensure strategic oversight and direction at a
wider organisational level i.e. including regional collaboration contributions to performance,
HR et al.

User Satisfaction

41.

42.

43.

| I [ [ | [
_Q_
T T T T T
| Ce | [ * [ [,
[ ]
5 3 B 3 : £
5 B 4 ] =
= 3 = = E
]
=]
m
[=

The level of All User satisfaction remains high at 77%

It is acknowledged that All User Satisfaction levels have declined, with the component
offences of Vehicle and Violent and Burglary victim satisfaction each having an effect on the
overall levels at different times.

Vehicle Crime satisfaction particularly has been affected by the changes to the policing
model and the survey in many ways does not lend itself to the manner of police response to
these crimes, but the structure of the survey questions has been largely fixed nationally until
most recently. Nevertheless, satisfaction levels appear to have begun to recover over the
most recent months.




44,

45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

18

Burglary satisfaction levels fell sharply over the four months to July 2016 and have remained
at this lower level subsequently. The level of burglary satisfaction remains high at above
80%.

Violent crime satisfaction has seen nine months of gradual but sustained recovery from the
low point seen in April 2016 which is contributing to the stabilised All User satisfaction
currently evident.

It should also be noted that more than 70% of victims remain satisfied with the Police
handling of their crime. The current levels are a reflection of the current resource and
response to these categories of crime. Although there remains work to be done to increase
levels the financial constraints and the conflicting demands of other categories of crime,
which have lower volumes but significantly higher threat and harm levels, may defer any
significant investment in improving this measure.

The method of satisfaction surveying is now open to review as the standardised National
reporting has been withdrawn. Work is underway to implement a survey regime that can be
responsive to changing priorities and provide appropriate data to facilitate improvements in
service across all areas of business in a victim focussed manner.

Victim satisfaction is directly linked to performance in responding to victims expectations in a
timely and effective manner, keeping them informed and taking appropriate action. This
report has already highlighted identified areas for improvement in the short, medium and
longer term alongside enhanced governance arrangements. Victim Satisfaction and the”
victim’s journey” (as described in the Police and Crime Plan) will be at the heart of these
improvements.

The removal of constraining Home Office data requirements provides the basis for contextual
satisfaction surveying which will provide diagnostic evidence to support future improvements
to service, feedback to officers and staff and thus, improved performance.

The Operational Performance Effectiveness Group, led by ACC Nixon which will ensure
detailed scrutiny going forward to drive up satisfaction levels.



19

To increase reporting of domestic abuse and ensure a positive outcome for victims and
witnesses of domestic abuse

Domestic Violence — With Injury

4
i
—_
by
[ -
L
=
=l
e -
T
ES ===
T {T'
L ]
} :
= :_E:-—E
i
T
F
==
b-"‘.

o -
0
e e el = B e B B B v T e e e S B e B =~ = =
- T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
T2oE8F=oc8523c8z o8z So8s3c85=2308

Domestic Violence — Without Injury

100~

_ED_

1]
e e el e Bk B B B B B T e S e W B S e = R = T < =
— T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T T
FTocEFIcEFSocEsFI o T aEgFI o5 FTo g

51. There are national increases evident in violent crime, and the subset of domestic related
violent crime. The previous Police and Crime plan objective of increased reporting, and the
work of the Domestic Abuse Investigation Officer team, together with the additional focus of
the DV360 project have all contributed to an increased awareness and focus on domestic
violence which are likely to have contributed to the increased recording of these offences.



52.

53.

54.

55.

20

The introduction of NICHE will also have had an impact as the means of flagging these
offences changed from the previous CIS system and this formed part of the training given.

The introduction of two new offences as part of the overall Violence without Injury category
has also had an impact on volumes, with almost 1300 offences reported during the year of
Malicious Communication or the Sharing of Private Sexual Images. The introduction of the
web-form in July 2016 also had a positive impact as it made it easier for Officers to record
the appropriate flags and markers on the crime records.

Violence with Injury offences which are the more serious offences are now reporting a
reducing trend which is clearly good news. The Violence Without Injury categories have seen
sharp increases and sustained levels of significantly higher than expected offences which at
present show no sign of reducing. This is the category that includes the new offences and
also contains the less serious offences of Harassment. Increased reporting of these is
considered positive as it does enable engagement and it is hoped will prevent less serious
abuse escalating over time to the more serious assaults.

PDG continues to consider these categories and analysis is tasked to further understand the
underlying causes for these increased levels, including work on the instance of repeat
victimisation. There is also a regular Domestic Violence meeting that manages the tactical
work to reduce the levels of offences and the levels of risk.

To increase reporting of serious sexual offences and ensure a positive outcome for victims
and witnesses of serious sexual offences

56.

57.

Recorded Crime — Rape Offences

70 A

The level of recorded rape offences has evidenced a generally increasing trend over the last
four years, with normal monthly fluctuations around this trend. The rate of increase appears
to have slowed in the last twelve months, and the current pattern is wide fluctuations around
the mean expected level at a generally higher level than previously seen. Increased
reporting is encouraged and supported.

The last 18 months have seen fluctuating report levels at this generally higher band and this
is now seen as the normal level for reports which does mean that there are no significant
exceptions identified.



21

58. The positive outcome ratio does appear to be low at 15%. However, there were 300
offences recorded where evidential difficulties or the victim declining to engage in the
prosecution precluded a successful outcome. There were just 17 offences where there was
no suspect and the investigation was completed pending any further material information.

To increase reporting of hate crimes and ensure a positive outcome for victims and
witnesses of hate crime offences

Recorded Crime — Hate Crime

EE'_

ts0 4L AT

0

o O e T o T o O oo TN oo 00 oo O ow W owmp m g WDy W oD WD D D e
— T T T T T T R T T T Y T AT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
8o 5FScE5zScgz3cEsS9cE5sSc8="c8

Satisfaction — Hate Crime

100% -

- 2 2 T 2 o d o2 22 0 2 FE SR RESE

59. Hate Crime recording increased markedly during 2016, and saw a spike in July which
coincides with the introduction of the web-form on NICHE. Subsequent months saw a

reduction in levels, although monthly volumes have now recorded increased levels of
offences in the most recent months.

60. Further work will be carried out to validate improved accuracy and detail being recorded as
well as the efficiency of the recording process.

61. Those offences that are recorded are predominantly recorded as racially motivated hate
offences.



62.

63.

22

The increased level of reporting of hate crime in the week following the EU referendum
appears to have been limited and short-term. The recent events at Westminster also brought

increased National focus on this area, although Leicestershire has not recorded any
significant shift in reported offences.

Satisfaction levels have seen a decline since September 2016 and this will form part of the

ongoing work to survey and analyse victim satisfaction in order to better align processes to
the needs and requirements of the victims, as described above.

To prevent ASB and to continuously improve the quality of service and response to
victims of anti-social behaviour

Recorded Incidents - ASB

Lewel

1500 N -,

1000

00

0

o FT g T T T no D NN MWD DD D O ow o DD DD e e [
P e o I o S e
l—}ﬂc—mn.ﬂ}U|:_|:||—L}E—WQB}UEQLL}:—WQE}UEQL
o =] 5] o =] 5] o =] 5]
{gqqa:mclEDQEE{EQQ{mOﬁnqegigqq{mOﬁnqeg

Monh

Satisfaction - ASB

64.

65.

100%

95%

The level of recorded ASB incidents exhibit a general seasonal pattern of a fall over the

autumn and winter months with an increased level of incidents building over the spring and
summer period.

The continued use of the repeat caller database has enabled neighbourhood teams to
effectively problem solve persistent issues, such as ASB. This work has now also expanded

to include partnership agencies, so that a multi-agency response can be applied to callers of
high demand.



66.

23

ASB satisfaction had appeared to stabilise, and in common with several other areas of
satisfaction monitoring there is now an apparent increase evident.

To continually improve the quality of service and response to victims of crime

All user Satisfaction

67.

68.

69.

100% 4

=S 2Dz D E e PRl ERE RO

All User satisfaction constitutes satisfaction levels from a sample of burglary, vehicle and
violent crime victims.

Many vehicle crimes are now non-attendant and receive a proportionate telephone based
service at the outset. Therefore, the need to finalise crimes at the earliest appropriate
opportunity where there are no viable lines of enquiry does mean that the current survey
guestions do not fit well with the current policing response and this may well have contributed
to the trend seen above.

The requirement for standardised National surveying has ended, with the exception of
Domestic Abuse victims. Forces can now implement their own survey regime to meet their
local needs and use these to improve the victim’s experience. The current surveys will
remain until any changes are implemented, in order to give continuity and to inform the Force
pending the implementation of local arrangements in the coming months, as described
above.

To reduce all crime

10,000
9,000
g0 L] .
7000 MrET

6,000 a”‘ﬁ.;’“ﬁ"““}d _. ]

SO00 1. L ]
4,000 - ToLbif iy it A ) RN R S LR Rk R g d
3000
2,000
1,000

L)

X

Apr10
A TR
et 10
dan 11
apr
TR
Oit 11
Jan 12
Apr12
dif 12
Oit 12
Jan 13
pr13
dil 13
Oit 13
Bn 4
Apr1d
dil 14
Oit 14
Jan 15
hpr5
Al 15
Oit 15
Bn 16
Apr 16
A1l 16
(it 16
dn 17




24

70. The above chart shows the overall recorded crime level for the Force.

71. The level of control has seen narrow fluctuations during 2015, resulting in a narrowing of the
expected bounds for 2016-17.

72. Recent months have seen overall crime levels break through the upper expected bounds and
record nine consecutive significant exceptions. This is due to increased levels of some higher
volume crime categories and PDG has continued to trigger actions to analyse and better
understand and mitigate this trend; the implementation of the Operational Performance
Effectiveness Group is one such action.

73. Additionally, there is a National rise in recorded crime across many categories, and the new
categories of Malicious Communications and “Revenge Porn” have added almost 1300
offences which equates to almost 2% of total crime.

To reduce domestic burglary and ensure a positive outcome for victims of burglary
offences

Recorded Crime — Domestic Burglary

100 -

]
Do D e T e T Doy g 0D O o o om g WDy MDD WD oD WD P
bl el e e e e T - i e e e S N e e e e e - e el e AT
FTESsgEAc S ScEESosEAcs3EEoE5E=SS




25

Satisfaction — Domestic Burglary

74.

75.

76.

7.

100% -

5%

0% 4

- = T T = T = = = T ¥ T = == = = = +*=— ¥ = = = @ = = = 7=

Burglary Dwelling offences have continued to follow the seasonal pattern in offending, with a
seasonal peak around the end of the calendar year. The seasonal peak in 2016 was
somewhat lower than that seen in previous years and the overall levels of offences are
currently well within the bounds of expected performance.

A positive outcome ratio of 5.8% was recorded for the year. It is noted that the outcome
“Taken into Consideration” is no longer a significant factor. In previous years there would
generally have been several hundred disposals of this type, but this is no longer seen as
there is little perceived benefit to offenders in “bundling” their offending history in this way.
Approaches are currently being made to the courts in order to reinforce the benefit of such
disposals.

Satisfaction levels for burglary, although showing signs of deterioration over, continue to be
strong currently standing at 82%.

There is currently no specific identified threat and this category continues to be monitored
and managed as part of business as usual with local management of emerging local trends
and targeted intelligence lead local operations.



26

To reduce violence against the person — with injury and ensure a positive outcome for
victims of violent crime — with injury offences

Recorded Crime — Violence against the person with Injury

1,200 -

£

Jula
Ot 10
Jl 1
Ot 11
Jl 12
Oct 12
Jl 13
O 13
Jl 14
Oct 14
Jl 15
O 15

Apr10
Jan
Aprd
Jan 12
Aprq2
Jan 13
Apri3
Jan 14
Apri4
Jan 15
Aprh
Jan 16
Apr16
2l 16
Ot 16
Jan 17

Satisfaction — Violence against the person with Injury

78.

79.

80.

81.

100% -

Violence against the person with injury includes offences such as actual bodily harm, and
grievous bodily harm.

Levels rose sharply at the start of 2016-17 and have remained significantly high towards the
upper bound of expected levels. At this stage it is not considered that matters are out of hand
and this is reflective of greater reporting Nationally. This will continue to be tracked and
monitored over the coming months in order to establish whether this level is the new normal
level following a period of particularly low reporting.

Positive outcome ratio for this category of 18.7% was recorded for the year.

The satisfaction level for overall violent crime has recovered over recent months above 75%,
which is an encouraging sign and reflects work undertaken to identify specific points in the
process where dissatisfaction might be triggered. This work has informed decisions to review

processes as part of Blueprint 2020 and specifically Project Darwin and review performance
governance.



27

To reduce vehicle crime and ensure a positive outcome for victims

82.

Recorded Crime

Theft of Motor Vehicle

A} uep
gL pio
q). e
gl ddy
g} uee
gl po
gl I
G ady
gl uee
% 4]
fl I
frl dy
{1 uep
I Ty
gl I
£ ady
£l Uep
21 po
L I
21 ady
2l uepe
(NN <l
Lh 1P
L ady
Ll Ugpe
0 po
0. e
0 ady

Theft from Motor Vehicle

2. uge
Ry
a. Iy
g} ady
aj. uge
IR <y
gl I
Gy
gl uee
10
fl e
frlady
. uer
(R <ly
gl
£l ady
£l uge
2L Po
AN
2y
Zl. uee
(A8 <l
LIy
L ddy
L. g
[8<y
a. Iy
0l ddy

Satisfaction

1) uep
aLpo
a
gl ady
o). e
5L PO
g
Gl ady
g, ep
{30
tl I
phady
Fl e
£LPO
g
£l ady
£]. e
&k Po
i
£l ady
Zl. e
L3O
Ay
by
b
0l PO
o
1} ady




83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

28

The level of theft of motor vehicle offences had shown a high level of stability around the
mean expected level.

Continued, intelligence led policing activities continue to be deployed to target the
perpetrators of these crimes, including EMOpPS operations.

Theft of motor vehicle offences reduced during 2016 from the significantly high levels seen
during 2015. The most recent months have seen a sharp and sustained increase although at
this stage it is unclear whether this is a continuing trend or a one off exception.

Theft From Motor Vehicle offences are currently showing a reducing trend from the peak
levels recorded in late 2016.

The Force is aware of this and further analysis has been tasked at PDG to support existing
work on Neighbourhoods to address this.

Positive outcome ratios of 12.4% for Theft of Motor Vehicle and 2.3% for Theft from Vehicle
offences were recorded for the year.

The satisfaction level for vehicle crime has stabilised at 73%. With the new Policing model, it
was understood that satisfaction levels for theft from a motor vehicle would be lower, as the
way in which they were investigated changed.

Data Quality and Crime Recording Integrity

90.

91.

92.

The findings of the audit team are presented at the Force PDG meetings and recent
meetings have reported that crime recording standards and the timeliness of recording are
being maintained and in some cases show signs of improvement. “No crime” audits show
good levels of crime recording and increased additional verifiable information to justify the
“no-criming” across different categories.

There are known issues relating to the incomplete flagging of crimes with appropriate
markers for metal theft, cyber enabled crime and other flags which it is anticipated will
improve further following the bedding in of the web-form.

At the time of writing HMIC are preparing to undertake a thematic inspection in this area and
future reports will reflect their findings.

Performance Monitoring Framework

93.

94.

95.

Whilst the current performance framework has served the Force well for a number of years,
as described above, it has been decided that there is now a need for an enhanced
framework to be introduced to support the Strategic overview of PDG with a more Tactical
Performance Effectiveness overview that can closely monitor and direct the actions of
Departments and key workstreams Forcewide.

The Force has well developed systems and processes to direct Force resources to those
offences that carry the greatest degree of threat, risk and harm. This work will be
complemented by this the scrutiny as part of the new Performance Effectiveness Group
chaired and led by ACC Nixon. Departments will hold their own performance meetings and
report to the Effectiveness Group on a monthly basis. Additionaly further strategic leads will
be assigned to areas of greatest risk.

It is anticipated that this additional scrutiny across all aspects of demand management and
performance will bring about very real improvements in the effective and efficient
management of resources, and also in the management of crime and the outcomes
achieved for the victims of those offences.



29

Implications
Financial: No financial implications identified
Legal: No legal implications identified
Equality Impact Assessment: No diversity implications identified
Risks and Impact: Reputational risk and heightened fear of crime where

levels are currently high
Link to Police and Crime Plan:  Police and Crime Plan Performance

List of Appendices
None

Background Papers
Performance Monitoring Paper B presented at Strategic Assurance Board May 2014.

Person to Contact
Roger Bannister — DCC, Tel: 0116 248 2005
Email: roger.bannister@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk

Jim Holyoak — Service Improvement, Tel: 0116 248 2582
Email: jim.holyoak@Ieicestershire.pnn.police.uk



mailto:roger.bannister@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk
mailto:jim.holyoak@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



31 Agenda Iltem 8

POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER FOR
LEICESTERSHIRE

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Report of POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
Date MONDAY 22"° MAY 2017

Subject VICTIM FIRST UPDATE

Author INSP B HORSFALL

Purpose of Report

1.  This report provides an update to Panel on the progress of the future of Victim First
Service delivery since the last report to panel on 29" March 2017.

Recommendations

2. The Panel are recommended to note the contents of the report.

Background

3. The PCC in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) has delivered the majority of
support services for victims and witnesses at a local level since October 2015.

4.  Following a formal procurement process, Catch 22 were the successful bidder to
deliver the bespoke “Victim First” Model for LLR.

5.  The current contract with Catch 22 expires on 30™ September 2017 with the potential
for a minor extension of up to 6 months (if required to allow for the proper planning and
implementation of replacement provision). The OPCC is currently considering what
provision will be made beyond cessation of this contract and has provided the PCC
with three options.

Executive Summary

6. The victim’s grant from the Ministry of Justice for 2017/2018 has been set at
£1,237,845. To continue meeting the needs of the victim in LLR the following options
are available to the PCC:

i.  Continue with the provision of “Victim First” delivered by an outsourced
provider identified through the OPCC commissioning process;

ii.  Continue with the provision of “Victim First” delivered by an outsourced
provider identified through the OPCC commissioning process alongside
appointment of an in-house Victim Service Co-ordinator.

ii.  Continue with the provision of “Victim First” delivered wholly in-house.



32

7. The PCC has considered and rejected option (ii).

8.  The collaborative and participative manner in which the OPCC is developing the
details of the model of delivery for future provision is continuing. Consultation is
underway with Force representatives, Equality scrutiny groups, Victim’s groups and
key stakeholders via the existing VWPAG.

The Future of Victim First Provision

9. There will be further discussion between the PCC and the Chief Constable
surrounding the service delivery options (i) and (ii) before a final decision is reached.

10. It is anticipated that the final decision regarding service delivery and progress on the
collaborative and participative development of service model will be available for report
to the next Panel.

Implications

Financial: None.

Legal: None.

Equality Impact Assessment: None.

Risks and Impact: None identified.

Link to Police and Crime Plan: This work is central to the Supporting Victims and

Witness strategic theme and has linkages with the
other themes.

List of Appendices
None.

Background Papers
None.

Persons to Contact
Mr Sam Watson - Programme Manager
Tel: 0116 229 4418, email; samual.watson@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk

Mr Simon Down — Commissioning Manager
Tel: 0116 229 8704, email: simon.down@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


mailto:samual.watson@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk

33 Agenda Item 9

THE POLICE & CRIME
COMMISSIONER FOR
LEICESTERSHIRE

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Report of POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER

Date MONDAY 22 MAY 2017 - 1:00 p.m.

Subject POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017

Author ANGELA PERRY, HEAD OF GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE

Purpose of Report

1. To update the Police and Crime Panel on the main provisions within the Policing and
Crime Act 2017 and the implications for Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC).

Recommendation

2. That members note the contents of the report and make comment as appropriate.

Background and Detail

3. The Policing and Crime Act 2017 (“the 2017 Act’) received Royal Assent on 31
January. The 2017 Act contains a wide range of measures, however, there are four
main areas that impact upon PCCs:

“Blue Light” service collaboration

Fire and Rescue Service governance
Police complaints

PCCs and Police areas

4, The detailed provisions within the Act are substantial and cover a wide range of
areas, also amending a number of other existing pieces of legislation to ensure that
they are aligned.

5. Whilst only some of the provisions are of direct impact on a PCC, many of the others
place new duties upon the Chief Constable and hence the PCC will need to expand
on his assurance processes to ensure that the Chief is fulfilling these new duties.

“Blue Light” service collaboration

6. The Act places a legal duty upon the 4 legal entities involved in Blue Light Services in
the Force area:



34

Office of Chief Constable (OCC)

Office of PCC (OPCC)

Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service
East Midlands Ambulance Service

Each of these entities are now required to consider collaboration with the other 3
entities in everything they do, indeed with these organisations in other Force areas. It
must always be considered every time a decision is made, if "sharing" is not deemed
appropriate it must be because it is neither effective nor efficient to do so.

Since this duty applies to all four entities the PCC must not only comply himself he
must also put processes in place to assure himself that the Chief Constable is
complying. As such, the report template used for reports presented to the
Commissioner from the Chief Constable at his Strategic Assurance Board will include
this aspect as an implication for the Chief to consider and include in future reports.

The new duty took affect from the beginning of April 2017.

Fire and Rescue Service Governance

10.

11.

12.

Currently there are three corporate entities involved in Policing and Fire:

The OCC (which is a Corporation Sole)
The OPCC (which is a Corporation Sole)
The Fire and Rescue Authority (FRA)

The Act requires PCCs to select one of the following four options.
a) a full merger of all 3 entities into a single Corporation Sole under the PCC;

b) a new Governance model whereby the OCC remains but the FRA becomes
a “Corporation Sole as the fire and rescue authority for the area specified in
the order, and for the person who is for the time being the police and crime
commissioner for the relevant police area to be for the time being that fire and
rescue authority.”

c) no change to corporate structures but the PCC applies for membership of
the Fire Authority, with full voting rights; alongside the Council membership,
where Fire and Rescue Authority agree;

d) do nothing, all structures remain the same and PCC has no involvement with
the Fire Service.

The PCC has the power to make a decision as to which option he is intending to
take. If options a) or b) are taken the due process must be followed as prescribed in
legislation. In the event of option c) being taken the PCC must formally request to
become a member of the FRA and the FRA must consider this request in line with
the process set out in legislation.

Police Complaints processes

13.

Currently the PCC'’s responsibility in the Police Complaints process is to scrutinise
that the Chief Constable is operating according to the appropriate procedures. The
PCC'’s only direct involvement in the delivery of the processes is to handle any
complaints about the personal conduct of the Chief Constable, other aspects are



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

35

delivered by the Chief Constable via his Professional Standards Department (PSD).
The intention of the new legislation is to give “a stronger role for PCCs”® within the
complaints processes.

The options available to a PCC are :

1) Leave current arrangements in place under management and employ of
the Chief Constable. PSD would undertake the appeals process on behalf of
the PCC.

2) Tweak current arrangements such that PSD would continue to handle the
initial complaint handling and then administer any subsequent appeal but the
PCC authorises final decision on all appeals based on the
recommendations of PSD.

3) Separate the handling of initial complaints and the appeals process.
PSD would administer the initial handling of the complaint but the PCC would
receive and administer any subsequent appeal.

4) Transfer the responsibility for the whole complaints process from PSD
to the PCC.

There are two conceptual elements that the Act is introducing

¢ That in future complaints will be considered, for recording purposes, to be
against the organisation and not against individuals. Currently complaints are
classified as either being against a Person or as Direction and Control.

e That in future a complaint must be recorded as soon as it is reported; only if it
subsequently found to be vexatious can the record be deleted. Currently a
complaint need not be recorded whilst initial consideration takes place.

The Act has introduced that the PCC will be the appropriate authority to determine
appeals against the outcome of an investigation into a complaint. Currently both the
handling of the initial complaint and any subsequent appeal is dealt with by PSD
through two separate processes. The PCC will nevertheless “be able to delegate
their complaints handling functions”.

In addition the PCC will have the power to assume control of the whole of the
complaints process, this is a power granted to the PCC and not a duty and he will be
free to leave the initial complaints handling process to the Chief Constable if that is
his desired approach.

Therefore the PCC will need to make a decision as to:

a) how to discharge his duty as the appellant authority; and

b) whether to assume direct management of any aspect of the complaints
process himself.

These changes will not come into effect immediately since they require changes to
Police Regulations which will need to be facilitated through Secondary Legislation.



36

Other Impacts

20. PCCs are granted the power to request to change the name of the Force that they
have oversight over (previously only a power possessed by the Home Secretary). It
should be noted that this is a new “Power” given to a PCC, there is no obligation for
the PCC to actually change the name of the Force.

21. The term of Office of Deputy PCCs has been changed so that it ends on the date of a
PCC election. Previously it was co-terminus with that of the PCC so that if a PCC left
office early then the Deputy PCC’s term ended whenever the PCC’s term ended; this
created issues in the appointment of an Acting PCC in the case of a sudden vacancy
and the new legislation addresses this such that it is straightforward for a Deputy to
become Acting PCC if necessary, with the approval of the Panel.

Conclusion

22. The Policing and Crime Act is wide-ranging and further updates to the Panel on
matters arising will be provided to future meetings.

Background Papers

! Policing and Crime Act 2017 Schedule 1 Paragraph 5

2 Explanatory Notes to the Policing and Crime Act 2017 Paragraph 325

®Policing and Crime Act 2017 Section 7

4 Policing and Crime Act 2017 Annex C

° Explanatory Notes to the Policing and Crime Act 2017 Paragraph 61

6 Explanatory Notes to the Policing and Crime Act 2017 Paragraph 501 (the power to delegate itself
arises from the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011)

Implications

Financial: Should any of the new powers available be utilised there could
be financial ramifications. In that event the Panel would be
notified of these.

Legal: Act of Parliament

Equality Impact None

Assessment:

Risks and Impact: None.

Link to Police and Crime None.

Plan:

Persons to Contact

Stuart Fraser, Tel: 0116 2298985
Email: stuart.fraser@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk



mailto:stuart.fraser@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2017
	7 Quarter 4 Performance Report
	8 Victim First Update
	9 Police and Crime Act 2017

